
Goodhue County Planning Commission

Government Center - Board Room

509 West 5th St, Red Wing MN 55066

6:00 PM Call Meeting To Order

Approval Of Current Agenda

Approval Of Previous Month's Meeting Minutes

June 21, 2021 PAC Meeting Minutes

MINUTES_JUNE2021_ PAC_DRAFT.PDF

Conflict/Disclosure Of Interests

Public Hearings:

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For CUP For Non-Metallic Mineral Extraction Facility 
(Herrick Properties LLP)

Request for CUP, submitted by Herrick Properties, LLP (Doug Herrick, 

Applicant/Owner) for a Non-Metallic Mineral Extraction Facility. Proposed activities 

include a limestone quarry and associated processing/transport equipment and 

facilities. Parcels 30.034.0400 and 30.027.0800. TBD 94th AVE West Concord, MN 

55985. The N ½ of the NW ¼ of Section 34 and the S ½ of the SW ¼ of Section 27 

TWP 109 Range 17 in Cherry Grove Township. A1 Zoned District.

PACPACKET_HERRICK_REDACTED.PDF

Other-Discussion

Adjourn

Anyone interested is invited to attend. Agenda items may be subject to change. 

Goodhue County Land Use Management

w  Goodhue County Government Center w  509 West Fifth Street w  Red Wing w  Minnesota w  55066 w

w  Building w Planning w  Zoning w  Telephone: 651/385 -3104 w Fax: 651/385 -3106 w

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

http://mn-goodhuecounty.civicplus.com/


Goodhue County Planning Commission

Government Center - Board Room

509 West 5th St, Red Wing MN 55066

6:00 PM Call Meeting To Order

Approval Of Current Agenda

Approval Of Previous Month's Meeting Minutes

June 21, 2021 PAC Meeting Minutes

MINUTES_JUNE2021_ PAC_DRAFT.PDF

Conflict/Disclosure Of Interests

Public Hearings:

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For CUP For Non-Metallic Mineral Extraction Facility 
(Herrick Properties LLP)

Request for CUP, submitted by Herrick Properties, LLP (Doug Herrick, 

Applicant/Owner) for a Non-Metallic Mineral Extraction Facility. Proposed activities 

include a limestone quarry and associated processing/transport equipment and 

facilities. Parcels 30.034.0400 and 30.027.0800. TBD 94th AVE West Concord, MN 

55985. The N ½ of the NW ¼ of Section 34 and the S ½ of the SW ¼ of Section 27 

TWP 109 Range 17 in Cherry Grove Township. A1 Zoned District.

PACPACKET_HERRICK_REDACTED.PDF

Other-Discussion

Adjourn

Anyone interested is invited to attend. Agenda items may be subject to change. 

Goodhue County Land Use Management

w  Goodhue County Government Center w  509 West Fifth Street w  Red Wing w  Minnesota w  55066 w

w  Building w Planning w  Zoning w  Telephone: 651/385 -3104 w Fax: 651/385 -3106 w

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

https://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/a8888005-374e-47fc-8eb6-fdc1da060397


Page 1 
PLANNING COMMISSION  
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   

June 21, 2021 MEETING MINUTES  
DRAFT 

________________________________________________________________ 
 

The meeting of the Goodhue County Planning Advisory Commission was called to order at 6:00 PM by 
Chair Huneke in the Basement IT Conference Room at the Government Center in Red Wing.  

Roll Call 

Commissioners Present Virtually via GoToMeeting: Mark Huneke, Tom Gale, Richard Miller, Darwin 
Fox, Chris Buck, Howard Stenerson, Todd Greseth, Carli Stark and Richard Nystuen 

Staff Present: Land Use Director Lisa Hanni (Virtual), Zoning Administrator Samantha Pierret, 
Zoning Assistant Alexandra Koberoski, and Zoning Administrative Assistant Kathy Bauer 

1. Approval of Agenda 
 
1Motion by Commissioner Miller; seconded by Commissioner Fox to approve the meeting agenda. 
 
Motion carried 9:0 
 

2. Approval of Minutes  
 
2Motion by Commissioner Fox; seconded by Commissioner Miller to approve the previous month’s 
meeting minutes. 
 
Motion carried 9:0 
 

3. Conflict/Disclosure of Interest  
 
There were no reported conflicts/disclosures of interest. 

 
4. PUBLIC HEARING: CUP Request for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES)  

Request submitted by ReneSola Power (MN Zumbrota 6-2 LLC, Applicant) and Swenson Family 
(Owner) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1-Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying 
approximately 8.0 acres. Parcel 47.019.1000. 43701 County 6 BLVD Zumbrota, MN 55992. Part of 
the W ½ of the SW ¼ Section 19 TWP 110 Range 15 in Zumbrota Township. A-3 Zoned District. 

Pierret presented the staff report and attachments. 

Cindy Larson O’Neil (Rensola Power representative) stated the “new driveway” as noted, would be built on 
an existing farm driveway that comes off of County 6 and the landowner is currently using it.   Also noted 
the owner has completed a Level II Wetland delineation and that has been approved.  The access road was 
realigned to minimize wetland impact. Lastly, the environmental partner suggested doing a wildlife fence 
instead of a chain link fence in the area, stating it would be better for the wildlife; further investigation will 
be conducted.   

Commissioner Nystuen questioned if the approval of the wildlife fencing would need to happen at this 
meeting or if proper research could be conducted and revisited.   

Chair Huneke stated there would need to be some investigating and research of the wildlife fencing 
proposal. 



Page 2 
PLANNING COMMISSION  
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   

June 21, 2021 MEETING MINUTES  
DRAFT 

________________________________________________________________ 
Hanni said she looked up what a wildlife fence is, the USDA has drawings on it and noted the fences are 
shorter to allow the wildlife to get through easier. The PAC can approve what we currently have and the 
County Board may make the final decision on the fencing.   

Commissioner Nystuen questioned if the fencing would keep people out. 

Hanni added the different options with wildlife fencing.  Also stated Staff would look into this further.  

Larson O’Neil commented in the past they typically do chain link fencing, but would like to look into 
wildlife fencing for this project.  Noted security for nearby residents and the facility itself is most 
important.   

Commissioner Miller questioned why we would want wildlife living within a solar garden, stating more 
chance for damage to the system.  

Hanni stated it would be more of a wildlife pass through.  

Chair Huneke Opened the Public Hearing  

Pierret presented a public comment that was received via email on Monday, June 21st from Tami 
Erdmann, 238 Highlands Avenue, Zumbrota, MN  55992. Erdman stated concern the solar garden will be 
in line of site of existing and new homes, and potential issues for future resale of properties nearby in the 
Highlands Subdivision.  Further stated with approval of this solar garden there would be 3 total solar 
gardens along County Road 6 Blvd.  

Anne Dilley, 43701 County 6 Blvd, requested verification on the map where the solar panels would be 
installed. 

Pierret verified the locations on the map sent with the public hearing notice.  Also confirmed the location of 
the panels from the Dilley Property is 774 ft.  
3After Chair Huneke called three times for comments it was moved by Commissioner Fox and 
seconded by Commissioner Miller to close the Public Hearing. 

Motion carried 9.0 

Larson O’Neil added in response to the Tami Erdmann email, the system location was redesigned upon 
request of the Township, making it now more buffered from the road and neighboring dwellings.     

Commissioner Nystuen questioned if there was a further plan of vegetative buffer, shrubbery, trees, etc. 

Larson O’Neil answered there was no current plan of additional buffer, but if requested, then would do so. 

Commissioner Nystuen questioned if there was public comment or requests for this. 

Pierret stated the staff viewed as much of the site as they could with the current road construction along 
County Road 6, noted this parcel had more of a buffer than the two existing solar gardens in the area.   
4It was moved by Commissioner Nystuen and seconded by Commissioner Stark to: 

LUM Staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission  

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 



Page 3 
PLANNING COMMISSION  
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   

June 21, 2021 MEETING MINUTES  
DRAFT 

________________________________________________________________ 
Recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request for a CUP, submitted 
by ReneSola Power (MN Zumbrota 6-2 LLC, Applicant) and Julie Swenson ET AL (Owner) for a 
Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1-Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying approximately 
8.0 acres.  

Subject to the following conditions: 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative unless 
modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. The project shall be decommissioned according to Article 19 Section 6 of the Goodhue County 
Zoning Ordinance and submitted plans; 

3. A decommissioning agreement between the landowner and MN Zumbrota 6-2 LLC shall be 
maintained to ensure reclamation of the area; 

4. LUM staff shall be notified by the landowner or solar company 30 days prior to ownership 
transfer or operator changes; 

5. A stormwater management and erosion control plan shall be submitted for administrative 
review as part of the Building Permit Application for the project;  

6. Applicant shall work with the Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District to 
determine an appropriate seed mix for disturbed areas of the site and should submit “seed 
tags” to the Land Use Management Department prior to final inspection; 

7. Applicant shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land Use 
Management Department prior to establishing the use; 

8. Applicant shall obtain a driveway access permit from Goodhue County Public Works prior to 
approval of a Goodhue County Building Permit;   

9. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, Article 19 
Solar Energy Systems (SES) and Article 23 (Urban Fringe District).  The Applicant shall 
request a final inspection of the project for compliance with applicable zoning requirements 
upon completion of the project; 

10. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 

11. This CUP shall expire 30 years from the date of approval unless terminated prior to that date. 

Hanni questioned if Commissioner Nystuen would like to add the wildlife fencing issue to the 
recommendation for the County Board to make final decision.   
 
Pierret questioned if Larson O’Neil could have a wildlife fencing proposal ready to present to County Board 
by July 1st. 
 
Larson O’Neil stated they could have an answer on the fencing for staff by that date. 
 
Pierret suggested Commissioner Nystuen amend the motion that Rensola Power provide clarification on 
the fencing prior to the July 1st County Board meeting, and questioned whether Commissioner Stark would 
be open to that amendment as well.   
 
Commissioner Nystuen agreed to the suggested amendment, Commissioner Stark seconded it.  
  



Page 4 
PLANNING COMMISSION  
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   

June 21, 2021 MEETING MINUTES  
DRAFT 

________________________________________________________________ 
Motion Carried 9:0 

Other Discussion 

Hanni added if there was a July PAC Meeting, that it would be in person.  County Offices will be officially 
open to the public on Monday, June 28, 2021.  It was confirmed that the meeting time will remain at 6:00 
p.m. 

Commissioner Buck invited Commissioners and staff on behalf of the Goodhue County American Dairy 
Association, to the Breakfast on the Farm Event on Friday, June 25, 2021 in Goodhue.    

 
5ADJOURN: Motion by Commissioner Buck and seconded by Commissioner Greseth to 
adjourn the Planning Commission Meeting at 6:43 p.m.   

Motion carried 9:0 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Kathy Bauer, Zoning Administrative Assistant 

 

 

  
1APPROVE the PAC meeting agenda. 

 Motion carried 9:0 

2APPROVE the previous month’s meeting minutes. 

 Motion carried 9:0 

3Motion to close the Public Hearing 

 Motion carried 9:0 

4APPROVE the CUP request for Utility-Scale Solar Energy System  

 Motion carried 9:0 

5ADJOURN. Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

 Motion carried 9:0 

 

  



 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 6 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Planning Commission 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: July 19, 2021 
Report date:  July 13, 2021 

 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for CUP for Non-Metallic Mineral Extraction Facility 
(Herrick Properties, LLP)  
Request for CUP, submitted by Herrick Properties, LLP (Doug Herrick, Applicant/Owner) for a 
Non-Metallic Mineral Extraction Facility. Proposed activities include a limestone quarry and 
associated processing/transport equipment and facilities.   
 
Application Information: 
Applicant(s): Herrick Properties, LLP (Doug Herrick, Applicant/Owner) 
Address of zoning request: TBD 94th AVE West Concord, MN 55985 
PID(s): 30.034.0400 and 30.027.0800 
Abbreviated Legal: The N ½ of the NW ¼ of Section 34 and the S ½ of the SW ¼ of Section 27 
TWP 109 Range 17 in Cherry Grove Township. 
Zoning District: A-1 (Agriculture Protection District) 

 
Attachments and Links:  
Applications and submitted project summary/maps 
Site Map(s) 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance: 
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428 
 
Background:  
Herrick Properties, LLP (Doug Herrick, Representative), owner of the subject property has 
submitted a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) Application proposing to establish a mining site to 
extract non-metallic mineral aggregates.  The site is proposed to include 37.69 acres of mining 
located on two commonly-owned 80-acre parcels.  The proposed mining operation is a limestone 
rock quarry. Mining that includes extraction of more than 400 cubic yards per year in the A-1 
District is subject to the approval of a Conditional Use Permit by the County Board.   
 
A limestone quarry operated on the southern parcel (30.034.0400), on the east side of what is now 
94th AVE through the 1950s and 1960s. Because the mining operation ceased prior to current 
mining registration standards, a conditional use permit must be approved for the project.  
 
Project Summary: 
Staff has met several times with Bruening Rock Products and engineers from WSB during the past 
year to guide the Applicants’ preparation of a proposal to conform to County application submittal 
requirements and pertinent performance standards to operate a Non-Metallic Mineral Extraction 
Facility in Cherry Grove Township.  
 

http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428


“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 6 

Land Use Management Department Staff have conducted a thorough review of the CUP Application 
submittals.  Three maps required in Article 14 of the County Zoning Ordinance depicting existing 
site conditions, proposed operations, and reclamation plans were submitted for review along with a 
narrative describing additional details.  
 
Existing Conditions: 
 
The Applicants prepared required Figure A depicting existing site conditions. Two 80-acre parcels, 
both owned by the Applicant, will be affected by the proposed mining operation. The parcels are in 
two sections of Cherry Grove Township (Section 27 and Section 34) both zoned A-1, Agriculture 
Preservation District. The southern parcel (30.034.0400) consists mostly of woodlands and 
grasslands surrounding an existing creek classified as Shoreland. The northern parcel 
(30.027.0800) consists of land used for row crop agriculture and areas of accumulated flow 
running north and south.  
 
The nearest residence (owned by David Nelson) is approximately 650-feet from the nearest area to 
be mined on parcel 30.034.0400. Article 14 specifies that mining operations should be at least 
1000-feet from existing dwellings. Setbacks may be reduced to 300-feet if written consent is 
obtained from the affected property owner. The Applicant has obtained written consent from Mr. 
Nelson to operate the quarry 650-feet from the Nelson residence.  
 
Three soil boring logs were provided with the application. The boring locations are shown in Figure 
A. Existing soil conditions were not provided in the application. The parcels are surrounded by A-1 
zoned properties on all sides, used mainly for row crop agriculture.  Both sections the mining 
operation would be located in are considered “full” for dwelling development.   
 
Proposed Operations: 
 
The Applicants prepared required Figure B depicting proposed quarry operations. Approximately 
37.69 acres of the existing 160 total acres will be impacted by the mining operation. A stabilized 
slope is proposed to be established around the perimeter of the area to be mined serving as a 
screening, noise, and dust barrier. The berm is sited to comply with Shoreland requirements. A 
cross-section is depicted in Figure B Quarry Proposed Operations.  
 
The proposed area to be mined complies with all required setbacks in the Zoning Ordinance. A 
scale and scale house are the only structures proposed to be constructed on-site on the east side of 
the project area along 94th AVE. Employee vehicle parking and fuel storage will be in this area. The 
operation will require a maximum of 12 employees on an intermittent basis. Proposed months of 
operation are April to November from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. Monday through Friday and 7:00 
a.m. to 12:00 p.m. Saturday which is within the hours of operation limitations found in the Zoning 
Ordinance.   

• Noise, Dust, Vibration, and Air Quality: 
 
Impacts from the proposed non-metallic mineral extraction facility may include noise, 
vibration, and dust.  Noise may be expected by periodic blasting and the use of heavy 
equipment from mining, loading, and transport. Noise limitations and mitigation is 
regulated by the Mine Safety and Health Administration (MSHA).  

 
The Applicants have indicated that blasting will be conducted by a licensed blasting 
constractor in compliance with federal and state laws and best practices.  No explosives will 
be stored on-site and Article 14 requires seismic blasting records to be submitted to the 
Zoning Administrator within 10 days of receiving the blast analysis.  

 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 3 of 6 

 The mining operation would be subject to complying with applicable MPCA Noise 
Standards. Features included in the Proposed Operations Plan such as creating an earthen 
berm around the perimeter of the mining area that would be seeded to establish 
vegetative cover would help mitigate dust and noise impacts to neighboring properties. 

• Water Resources:  
 

The Applicant noted on the Proposed Operations Map that all site runoff shall remain within 
the quarry boundary. They also stated that all water retention ponds will be placed within the 
quarry boundary and the existing drainage pattern will be followed by establishing grading to 
direct stormwater flow around the quarry.  

 
The Applicants have stated that no monitoring wells will be required as no washing is proposed 
on-site. Parcel 30.034.0400 is within the shoreland of an unnamed creek. No mining activities 
are proposed within the shore impact zone (50 feet from the Ordinary High Water Mark) as a 
300-foot buffer from the existing stream is proposed. The proposed Stabilized Slope is 
proposed to be located within the Shoreland area. The Applicants have proposed to stabilize 
the slope according to Shoreland Ordinance standards.  
 
• Aesthetics:  

  
Aggregate mining is a high-impact land use that results in significant long-term alterations to 
the landscape in addition to visual impacts for the duration of the mining activity.  These may 
include seeing open pits, major equipment, and gravel hauling trucks.   

 
The quarry as proposed will be visible only from limited vantage points from 94th AVE to the 
north, generally, it should not be highly visible from nearby dwelling sites as there is tree 
coverage to the south and southeast.  The scale and scale house will be visible from 94th AVE. 

 
Vehicles accessing and leaving the site will utilize 94th AVE (aggregate surface) to access 
County 11 BLVD to the north (asphalt surface). There are two dwellings located at the 
intersection of County 11 BLVD and 94th AVE approximately ½ mile north of the proposed 
mine (Georgia Haugen and Jeff Schultz).  

 
Most of the mining will be occurring below grade and will be partially screened with the 
stabilized slope as illustrated in Figure B Quarry Proposed Operations.  
 
• Traffic Safety:   

 
The Applicants have indicated that they expect a maximum of 40 truck trips per day during 
peak production. The number of trips would increase and decrease with demand and time of 
year.  The access road to the quarry site is 94th Avenue, a Cherry Grove Township road.  The 
driveway access from the Herrick property onto 94th Avenue is located approximately ½ mile 
south of the intersection with County 11 BLVD. Goodhue County Engineer Greg Isakson 
reviewed the proposal and noted: 
 
As long as the trucks are legally loaded and stopping at the stop sign at CSAH 11 I don’t have 
a concern. The County retains the right to reduce the weight limits on CSAH 11 as needed.  
 
• Site Security: 
The Applicant noted that berms to be established above the quarry face will act as site security 
and entry will be secured by gates off 94th AVE. A sign will be erected on 94th AVE indicating 
operator information and complaints will be addressed proactively. The Planning Commission 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 4 of 6 

should consider whether fencing should be required in accordance with Article 14 Section 6 
Subd. 4(B) “Fencing, signs, and barriers are required around ponding areas and steep-sloped 
excavation areas unless, because of their location they are not deemed to create a safety 
hazard.”    
 

Reclamation Plan: 
 
The Applicants prepared a Reclamation Plan which states that the quarry floor will be revegetated 
with a minimum of 4 inches of topsoil. Vegetation must comprise 70% of the quarry floor before 
reclamation will be considered complete.  
 
A buttress berm constructed of rubble will be installed at the intersection of the quarry floor and 
wall to prevent access directly under the rock wall. The existing berm will remain vegetated upon 
closure of the operation.  
 
The Applicant is proposing to use the reclaimed quarry for low-intensity agriculture.  
 
SWCD Comments: 
Goodhue Soil and Water Conservation District Director Beau Kennedy and Water Planner Chad 
Hildebrand reviewed the proposal and had the following comments: 

• More detail is needed regarding how the “Grading will be established and extended throughout the 
life of the quarry to direct storm water flow around the quarry to continue existing drainage 
patterns.” How will the grading be completed, is there a structure being installed to handle the 
contributing watershed coming from the agricultural field to the edge of the quarry? Designs 
should be provided to demonstrate the proposed grading plans to ensure it can handle the 
incoming watershed. Plans should show what would happen if the water enters the quarry and 
how it will be treated.  

• What is the plan to control the growth of noxious weeds on the quarry site? 
• Recommend “Water Quality Monitoring” be performed on the quarry project site. 
• The plan does not show the revision to convert the rehabilitated area to a 3:1 slope as stated in the 

ordinance. Applicants only stated plans would be revised to a 3:1 slope.  
• Additional information is needed on the Soil Restoration of the proposed project site. Is the quarry 

floor being restored within the original undisturbed depth? Are there soil profiles to determine the 
original undisturbed depths? 

• What is the contingency plan in case the earth embankment or quarry wall fails or water from the 
quarry enters the public water? 

 
Staff discussed these requirements with SWCD staff and determined that the Planning Commission 
should not recommend approval of the Mineral Extraction Facility permit until all SWCD questions 
are addressed.  
 
Cherry Grove Township: 
Cherry Grove Township considered the mining operation at their November 2020 meeting. The 
Township considered roadway, noise, and dust impacts of the quarry. The Township approved the 
permit request with four conditions: 
 

1.  A berm will be constructed on the perimeters of the quarry. They will seed it with grass 
and maintain (mow) along with the planting of bushes and trees. This will reduce the 
noise and dust from the operation.  

2. Bruening Rock Products will maintain 94th Ave. from driveway to the stop sign on hwy. 
#11. This includes adding rock to the township road.  

3. Bruening Rock Products will also apply dust control to said stretch of township road.  
4. If the culvert under 94th Ave sustains damage or collapse during operation of the quarry, 

Bruening Rock Products will replace said culvert. 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 5 of 6 

 
Security: 
Article 14 Section 6 Subd. 1 requires the Applicant to post a letter of credit, bond, or cash escrow for 
a mineral extraction facility CUP. The security should account for costs of bringing the operation 
into compliance with the mineral extraction permit requirements including site monitoring and 
enforcement costs, extraordinary costs of repairing roads due to the special burden resulting from 
the hauling of materials and traffic associated with the operation, site restoration, and costs the 
County may incur in enforcing the terms of the Conditional Use Permit including attorney’s fees. 
The bond shall be for a minimum of one year and shall include a provision for notification to the 
County at least 30 days prior to cancellation or non-renewal. The Applicant has proposed 
reclamation costs to be $103,647.50, staff will calculate the required security prior to County Board 
consideration.  

 
Proposed Future Findings of Fact:  

• The proposed limestone quarry operation does not appear injurious to the use and enjoyment 
of properties in the immediate vicinity for uses already permitted, nor would it substantially 
diminish and impair property values within the immediate vicinity. The quarry would be 
located within a primarily agricultural area in the vicinity of an abandoned mining operation. 
There is one dwelling within 1,000 feet of the proposed quarry which has submitted written 
consent for a reduced setback.  

• That the establishment of the proposed mining operation is not anticipated to impede the 
normal and orderly development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses 
predominant to the area. The use is proposed to meet all standards of the Goodhue County 
Zoning Ordinance and it does not appear incompatible with adjacent land uses. The quarry 
would be located in two A-1 Zoned sections of Cherry Grove Township that are considered 
“full” for dwelling establishment.  

• A review of the Applicant’s submitted project summary indicates adequate utilities, access 
roads, drainage, and other necessary facilities are available or will be provided to 
accommodate the proposed use.  

• The submitted plans identify means to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space 
to serve the proposed use and meet the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance’s parking 
requirements. 

• The submitted plans detail adequate measures will be taken to prevent or control offensive 
odor, fumes, dust, noise, and vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance 
including berming, seeding, hours of operation, and MPCA Noise Standards. 

Staff Recommendation: 
LUM Staff recommends the Planning Commission TABLE the request from Herrick Properties, 
LLP (Doug Herrick Applicant/Owner) for a Conditional Use Permit to operate a Non-Metallic 
Mineral Extraction Facility.   
 
The Planning Commission should consider the following conditions and whether any conditions 
should be added for final consideration:  

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and 
narrative unless modified by a condition of this CUP; 

2. Hours of Operation shall be limited to 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m., Monday through 
Friday and 7:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. Saturday.  Any exceptions must comply with 
Article 14, Section 6, Subd. 4; 

3. Seismic blasting records shall be submitted to the Zoning Administrator within 10 
days of receiving the blast analysis; 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 6 of 6 

4. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, 
and regulations.  Evidence shall be provided to the County of all required permits 
prior to the start of Mining Operations; 

5. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, 
Article 14 Mineral Extraction and Article 21 Agricultural Protection District;  

6. Site Reclamation after completion of mineral extraction shall be performed 
according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative in accordance with 
Article 14 Section 6 Subd. 4S;  

7. The operation shall be annually registered with Goodhue County in accordance with 
Article 14 Section 6 Subd. 2;   

8. Security.  The applicant/owner (Doug Herrick) of the property on which the mineral 
extraction is occurring, shall post a letter of credit, bond, or cash escrow to be 
determined by staff prior to consideration by the County Board.  If the required 
Security is provided in the form of a “Letter of Credit” or a “Performance Bond”, it 
shall be subject to review and approval by the County Attorney prior to start of 
Mining Operations.  Goodhue County shall be listed as the eligible party to access the 
Security to reimburse the following costs upon failure of the Applicant/Owner to 
comply with requirements of this Conditional Use Permit;  

9. Mineral Extraction and related activities are limited to the 37.69 acres as legally 
described on the Certificate of Survey for Herrick CUP Bruening Rock Products, Inc. 
WSB Project No. 017322. 

10. Applicant shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land Use 
Management Department prior to constructing any structures on the property;  
  

 
 























 

  

3
7

0
1

 4
0

T
H

 A
V

E
N

U
E

 N
W

  
| 

 S
U

IT
E

 1
0

0
  

| 
 R

O
C

H
E

S
T

E
R

, 
M

N
  

| 
 5

5
9

0
1

  
| 

 5
07

.2
1

8
.3

7
45

  
| 

 W
S

B
E

N
G

.C
O

M
 

Memorandum 
 
To: Pierret, Samantha 
 
From: Ron Fadness (Bruening Rock Products), Luke Lunde (WSB) 
 
Date: July 12, 2021 
 
Re: Herrick Quarry CUP Request for Additional Information 
 WSB Project No.  017322-000 
 
 
Goodhue County Comments and Response 
 
j. No monitoring wells 
q. The primary haul route will be via 94th Avenue to County 11.   
k. Two species were identified which includes the Redside Dace within the stream.  No 

impacts are proposed within the 300 ft shoreland setback. 
B. Jerome Halweg, 900 Montgomery Street, Decorah, IA 52101, (563) 380-1030 
E. Limestone will be produced by stripping the overburden, blasting and crushing the rock 

into various sized products.  Blasting will be conducted by licensed blasting contractors, 
in compliance with federal and state laws and best practices.  Production will vary 
depending on local demand.   

F. Hours of operation will be from 7:00 AM to 6:00 PM Monday through Friday, and 7:00 AM 
to 12:00 Noon on Saturdays. Product will be available for sale year-round, with 
production activity typically occurring between April and November. The lifespan of the 
site will depend on production demands.   

G. Operations will utilize crushing equipment, loaders and dump trucks to process and haul 
products.   

H. Activity will depend on demand for product.  During production, approximately 10 vehicles 
will be present on the site.  At other times, track traffic will range from nothing to possibly 
40 trips per day.   

F. Operations on the site will be covered by air and stormwater permits issued by the 
Minnesota Pollution Control Agency as well as safety regulations promulgated by the 
Mine Safety and Health Administration of the United States Department of Labor.  Air 
permits run with the crushing equipment, and stormwater permit MNG490115 will be 
amended to include this site when we are ready to begin work at this location.  MSHA 
does not issue permits.   

J. Berms will be established above the quarry face, and the entry to the site will be secured 
by gates to provide safety and limit unwanted entry.   

K. A sign identifying the operator of the site with contact information will be posted at the 
entry from 94th Avenue.  Any complaints will be addressed proactively to maintain good 
relationships with neighboring property owners.   

N. A truck scale will be paced on the site prior to the commencement of operations.  
Vehicles leaving the site will be weighed to assure compliance with weight restrictions.   

O. The travelled portions of the site will be maintained with gravel to ensure that no mud is 
tracked on or about the site.  Site managers will use loaders to clean up anything that 
may accumulate on public roadways.   

Q. The operator has established Spill Prevention and Containment plans covering each site 
it operates, and a Stormwater Pollution and Prevention Plan will be drafted for this site 
specifically.   



Goodhue County – Samantha Pierret 
July 12, 2021 
Page 2 

S. Berms will be established above the quarry face, and the entry to the site will be secured 
by gates to limit unwanted entry.   

 
Goodhue County SWCD Comments and Response 
 
1. Proposed end use is low intensity agriculture production following mining activity. with a 

proposed quarry floor elevation of 1127” the entire quarry floor will likely be under water due 
to the elevation of the nearby stream and as evident in the soil boring data. Is water 
quality/quantity modeling required per our mining ordinance if this is the case? 
 
The mining limits have been revised to include a 300ft buffer from the stream south of the 
project limits.  See revised attached figures. 
 

2. Reclaimed pit contours not provided. 
 
Typical cross sections were provided in the reclamation plan.  If requested Bruening Rock 
Products can provide general proposed reclamation contours of the site.  
 

3. The detail provided in the rehab plan does not meet the mining ordinance spec for Land 
Reclamation on new facilities. Slopes must be 3:1 or gentler. Same goes with the Soil 
restoration standards section. 

 
Reclamation plans will be revised to meet the 3:1 slope requirement for the reclamation and 
restoration standards. 
    

4. Special attention should be made/clarified on how the two drainages from the north (~40 ac 
and ~20ac) will be accounted for during and after mining activity. How will existing drainage 
patterns be followed if there is a berm constructed around the entire facility? 
 
Grading will be established and extended throughout the life of the quarry to direct storm 
water flow around the quarry to continue existing drainage patterns.   
 

5. The SW portion of the proposed mine will be located within the Shoreland (~115’ from the 
stream edge).  
 
Mining Limits have been revised to ensure the project meets the required 300 ft buffer 
requirements of the shoreland ordinance. 
 

6. Is dewatering necessary? Appears proposed pit floor is 1127’ and the stream elevation is 
around 1140’. Will the pit be dewatered to access the bottom most pit material? Will 
dewatering cause nearby stream quantity concerns? 

 
Mining limits have been revised to meet the 300ft shoreland setback requirements.  
Dewatering will not be necessary as Bruening Rock Products will mine to elevations above 
water table.  Geotechnical borings identify a perched water table above the first encountered 
bedrock due to an ash layer.  Water table was not encountered within the remaining boring 
depths as identified in the soil boring logs. 
 

7. We also talked with the DNR Fisheries and they completed sampling there and caught 
Redside Dace in July 2017. 
 
Noted, disturbance of the stream corridor or the 300’ shoreland buffer is not proposed for 
this project. 



Goodhue County – Samantha Pierret 
July 12, 2021 
Page 3 

 
8. Would also like to mention that in the Southeast corner of the proposed mining area may 

potentially be a “Shallow Open Water” wetland present. 
 

The indicated potential shallow open water wetland in the southeast corner of the site is a 
remnant from previous mining operations that occurred within the limits of the proposed 
project.  This location is a manmade open water feature because of previous mining 
activities. 
















